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The experiment of a
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'{k‘:_,_ 5 . . civilised Nationsof the

AL /o) been tried, and has smeceeded b

i 5;",::!"" moest sanguine expectations of |

& B “ tore. It iy, indeed, searcely pr
;j = instutice uny great enterprise o
{ date which {aa o completely sal
anticipations which had been for
results, Differing from most ol
tutions for benefiting the pgreat
menkind, which have required timne
rience to mature, it has sprung, like Minerva from
of Jove “full armed,” into life and setivity; resen
goddews, howerer, only in her move pacific nttributes
of the olive tree, and her patronage of the Indus
Other nations have devired means for the display
ragement of their own oris and manufactures;
been reserved for Engluwnd to provide sn arer
exhibition of the industrisl triumphe of the w)
She has offered an hospitable invifation to s
nations to bring the choicest products of th..
to her capital, and there to enter into an amieable ¢
with each other and with herself s and she has endc
secure to them the certainty of an impurtial verd
efforts. Whatever be the extent of the E'eneﬁl; whiel
domonstration moy confer upon the Industrial &
world, it canunot fail to soften, if net to eradicate

[E GREAT EXHIBITION.

TR SMLITTATING OF AFl THOME ARTS WIIICT AR® FIETERRED RY PRACE.
T WAINTAIN THZ FRAUK OF TRE WORLD “-ITE QUIBN

-

aatren | the prejudices and snimosities which have solong retarded
1l con- | the happiness of naticus; and to promote those feelings of
wertox | peace and good will” which are smong the surest mute-
iatory | cedents of their prosperity ; a pence, which Shakspeare has
i the | told us—

% In of the naturs of a conquent ;
EE For then bath partiea nobly sre lllb:l'ilﬂd,
= And neither party loses.””
»ixhibi-

il the | Tt forms no part of our present object to enter, with any
rld has | degree of minnteness, into the history of exhibitions of this
il the | clogs; but a brief glance at the origin. and progress of such
wrojec- | aasociations in Franee nnd England ray not be considersd
qi)ln to | irrelevant, So far back as 1766-7, the Soviely of Arts of
wdern | London offered prizes for specimens of varivus manufietures
ed the | —tapestty, earpets, porcelnin, smong others —and publicly

of its | exhibited the articles which were thua collected; aud in

ingti- 1 1761 and 1762 the ariists of Great Britzin formed them-
nily of | sclves into two societies for the exposition and sale of works
dexpe- | of ark. A few years afterwards (1768), the Royal Academy
~ brain | of Painting was established, as a private nociety, under
ng the} the immediate patronuge of the Crown, and Bir Joshua
et love | Reynolds appointed its President, Bince then, numercus
i\ Arts. | institutions of & similar character have been set on foot in
encou- | this country, with coneiderable advantage to the branches
it bna | of industry they were intended to benefit. France must,
Tor the | however, be regurded as the originabor of exhibitions which
waorld, | are, in character and plan, most analogous to thaf on whose
winding | history we are about fo enter. 'We gather from the historical
iduatry | essay of Messieurs Chatlamel snd Burat, and the pamphlet of
retition | the Marquias d’Aveze on the subject, that, shortly after thut
wred to | noblemun’s appointrment to be Commissioner of the Royal
w their | Manufactories of the Gobeline, of Sévres,and of the Savonnerie,
s great | in 1797, ke found that two years of neglect had reduced the
of the | workmen almost to starvation, whilat it had left the respective
‘eether, | warehousen flled with their choisest productions, In this crisis,

xi
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the idea ceenrred to him of converting the chabean of 8% Cleud,
then uninhabited, into 4 bazaar, for the exhibition and dis-
posel, by lottery, of the large stock of tapestry, chine, and
carpets, on hand in these estublishments. Having obiained
the congent of tho government to his proposal, he set aboub
mgmi the various objects in the apartments of the chatesu;
but, on the day fixed for the openimg of hia bazaar, he was
compelled, by a decree of the Directory, banishing the nobility,
to quit Frauce at a very short notice, and the project fell to
the ground, On his retarn to Paris in the enaming yenr, the
Mnrquimlanned snother exhibition of an even more important
kind. ving collected o grest many objects of taste and
vert, he distributed them throughout tho house and gardens
of the Maizon d'Orsay, Rue de Varennes, with u view to their
sale. In locking over the catalopue of objects of which this
collection was composed, we can bardly belp being etruclk
with ita aristoeratical character. The richest furnituve and
morqueteris produced by Boule, Riesener, and Jacob ; the
finest clocks and waiches of L'Epine and Leroy; the superb
ching of Sivres, of Angoultme, and of Nest; the mosb
elegontly bound books, fully confirming the traditionary
excellence of Grolier and De Thou ; silla of Lyons; historical
picturea by Vincent and David; bronzes, and senlpture; served
to show to what class of the community French manufacture
hisd, up to that period, besn mainly indebted for sapport. The
suecess which attended the efforts of the Marquis led to the
adoption of his iden by the government, and the establishment
of the first officiol Exposition, on the very epot, on the Champ
de Mars, on which the army had held 5 triumphal show of
it aplendid eollection of I spoils. 8ix weoks after that
fiite, the nation erected on the same spot a Temple of Industry
for the exhibition of more pacific trophies; an edifice sur-
rounded by sixty porticos, filled with the most beautiful objects
that had been monufactured in Frapce. The system of
deciding on the comparative merits of the various echibitors
by juries, composed of gentlemen distingnished for their
taste, wns then, for the first fime, sdopted. Prizes were
awarded for wafches, mathematical inatruments, painting
china, ete. The sucease of thiz Hxposition wos so prenf,
thot the government resolved to repeat it nnnun.lly; but, in
spite of the cireular of the Minister of the Interior to that
effect, the political commotions of the times prevented him
from repenting i, until the yesr 1801, and then only ab
the instanes of the Hirst Consul, who visited the factoriea
sud steliers of the principal towns in France, with several
men of science, for the purpose of convincing the maou-
factuvers of the importance to themselvea of supporting much
on undertaking. is second display took place in the
gundnngle of the Louvre, in a femporary building erected
or the ocossion. Notwithstanding the diffieultien which had
attended its establishment, 200 exhibitora were competitors
for the prizes. Upon this occasion, ten gold, twenty silver,
and thirty bronee medals, were awarded; ome of the last
having been adjudged to the celebrated Jacquard, for his
now famous machine,

It must not be overlooked that even at this enrly period
the Juries awarded prizes for improvements in the quality of
wool #a a raw maberinl, and for excellence in woollen and
cotton fubrics. The third exhibition took place on the same

L in 1802 ; and on that oecasion no fewer than 600 exhi-
bitors competed for the prizes. The populerity of these
expositions led to the formation of the Soridtd &' Encourage-
ment, which aided very importantly the industrisl efforts of
the Fronch manufacturers. It ia o remarkable fact, however,
that whilst in France the Society of Arts and Manufhctures
owes ita origin to thesn public expositions of the products of
ita industry, we are in England whoily indebted for exhibitions
of this kind to our Society of Arts, The fourth exhibition of
French industrial products took place in 1808, in o building
erected for the purpose in front of the Hipital des Tn-
valides ; when the exhibitors hnd increased o 1400, ond it
wes found necessary to keep open the doors for 24 days.
Here, for the firat time, were displayed the printed cottons of

‘uwlhousen and Logelfmch; silk, thread, and eottom lnco;
blonde, cloth and mixed goods. Among the improvoments
for which prives were awarded, were the manufacture of iron

by the aid of coke instead of charcoal, and that of ste
a process wholly unknown till then.

he disturbed condition of Franee, arising out of her
with her Buropean neighbours, preventad the fifth exlib
from taking pllir.ce until 1819, when it waz tnsugurated o
fite of 8t. Liouis, and continued open for thirty-Hive days.
nisinber of exhibitors had inereased to 1700, The sixth
bition took place in 1823 on the same spot as its predece
snd remoined open 50 days. Great improvement was mm
in the manufacture of many of the erticles; in machinery
especinlly. It won on this oceasion that the model of
first Freveh suspension bridge over the river Rhone, b
Leguin, was exhibited by ite engineer. The next Indw
Exposition ocewrred in 1827, when a large building
erected for it in the Ploce de Iz Concorde. The e
was hold in 1834; the ninth in 1839, when no fewer
4381 competitors cntored the field ; the tenth in 1843, -
3060 moenufactorers cxhibited their productions; and
eleventh in 1849, in the Champs Elysées, when the nu
of competitors had inereased to 4494, [Both thesn exhibi
were fully refori:ed and extensively illustrated in the
Jomnrax.] It is true that other notions had fuilewed
example of France, but without schieving her suceess,
Belginn and Bavarisn governments have both had their
trinl eshibitiony [the Exhibition at Brusssls wea full
ported and illustrated in the ArT-Jounway]; but neitk
them call for especinl notice.

In this country, (lurin%l the last dozen years, there
been many exhibitions of this description ; but, with hen
there on exception, thoy have differed little in character
the ordinary Bazaar. Manchester, Leeds, and Dublin (the
g0 early as 1827) had all opened bazaars for the sale of the
ductions of the surrounding neighbourhood; but the first
ing in this conntry devoted expressly to the exhibition of n
fneturcs, wos that erected at Birmingham in 1849 on
occcasion of the visit of the British Associstion. The t
ing, on that ocension, included a space of 10,000 =
feck, inde‘[:andcntly of 3 corridor of 800 feot, which
nected the main exhibition reom with Bingley H
within whose grounds it had been located; so that, in
ing the rooms of the old mansion, the total aren eovere
the Exhibition wes egual to 12,800 squarc foet. The
of the building did not exceed 18007 This and the
Trade Bazaar, held in Covent Gerden in 1845, appros
neaver fo the French exposilionsin the variety and e
of the natienal productions they comprised, than un
their predeeessors in this country. [Hoth thesr exhibi
~—that of the Free Trode Bazaar, and that held in Birr
ham—wero folly reported mud extensively illusteated ir
ART-JOURNAL,]

The iden of an Bxhibition which should include speci:
of the Industrial Products of varions nations originste
the early park of 1849, with M. Buffet, the French Min
of Agrieulturs snd Commerce ; and with a view to asce
the opinions of the manufacturers on the subject, cire
wera addressed by him to the Chambers of Commerce thic
out France, proposing that epecimena of the arts and »
factures of neighbouring countries should be admitted t
uﬁgmnching exposition. The replies which were receive
this sugpestion were so unfavoursble to its adoption,
M. Buffut was indeced at once to abandon the idea. If, £
fore, the merit of hoving originated exhibitions of her
manufactures belongs to France, it is to his Royal Higl
Parvce Arnenr that the more noble and disinterested pli
throwing open an ingtitution of this deseriplion to the
petition of the whole world, is exclusively due; and his
gestion has been earried out in a spirit every way worth
geandenr and generosity.

The grent success which attended the French Indu
Exposition of 1844 had cansed representations to be ma
the English povernment of the advantages which =
pecrue to our commerce from s similar exhibition in
country; but the efforts which were made to obfun
co-operafion appear to have been wholly unsuccessful.
1848, & proposal to establish a seif-supporting exhib
of the products of British industry, to be directed
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HISTORY OF THE GREAT
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‘Royal Commission,wns submitted by
H.R.H. Prince Alhertio the govern-
ment, but with no better suecess;
and it then beeame apparent that
10 reliance whatever eould be piaced
upon the active support of Her
Majesty’s ministers for sny such
plan. “They bad, in all probability,
no objection to see the experiment
tried, but were evidently unwilling
to commit themselves to any re-
sponsibility in behalf of a seheme
which seemed to be heset by so
many diffenliies. Meanwhile, the
popular feeling in favour of such an
undertaking was rapidly strengtben-
ing, and the success which has
attended the experiment may, in &

at measure, be referred to the
freedom of setion which this disso-
ciation from the timid councils of
the government secured for its pro-
jectors. 1t may be proper, in
this place, to remark that, ex-

apondence with foreign nations ;
the provision of a site for the
building; and the organisation
of the police; no assistance hus
been either sought or obtained
i from the government for the

present Exhibition; whilst, in
! every emse in which it has
heen attended by expense, the

cost has heen defrayed oub of
| the funda st the disposal of the
i Executive Committee.

The initiative in those in-
quiries which were indispensable
to the due eonsideration of the
means by which the idea of an
Exhibition for all Nations was
to be carried out, wns taken by
the Bociety of Arts, 2 com-
mittee of whose members was
formed in June, 1845, for the
purpose; the funds for defray-
mg the preliminary expenses
of which were subscribed,
among themselves. An in-
quiry having been inati-
tuted for the purpoee of
ascerinining how far the
manufacturers of Great Bri-
tain were favourable to such
o design, with ne very en-
couragmg result, the iden
was for o time abandened.
In 1447, the Council of the
Society launched their pilot
balloon in the shape of an
Exhibition of British Manu-
factures, professedlythe first
of a series ; and encauraged

¢ by its suecess, repeated the
experiment in the ensuing
vear; when the intentien of
its executivewnaannonnced,
to establish an annusal eom-
petition of the same kind,
with » view to the opening
of a quingennial exhibition
for the indusirial products
of all natione to be held in
1851. As amn accessory
to their plan, the coumneil

xiii

sotight to connect with it the varions
Bchools of Design established in our
Inrger towns, and obtained the co-
oEemtion of the Board of Trade,
through its president, Mr. Lohou.
chere, in that object. They also se-
enred the promise of n site from the
Earl of Carlisle, then Commiesioner
of Woods and Foreata; who offered
them the central area of Somerset
House, or sny other government
ground at his disposal which seemed
adapted for their purposes. The
Exhibition of 1849, confined for the
most part to works in the precious
metals, several of the more important
of which were contributed by Her
Mzjesty, proved more poecessful then
cither of the two that had preceded
it, and stimulated proportionably the
exertions of the Couneil. A veport
on the French Exposition of the
same year, by Mr. Dighy Wyatt,
had, moreover, stronply eon.
firmed them in their eonvietion
of the utility of snch an exhibi-
tion in this country.
Meanwhile, H. . H. Prince
Albert was not only privy to,
but; entirely approved of these
proceedings ; and, on the ter-
minafion of the Parlismentary
sesgion of 1849, took the subject
under his immediste snperin-
tendence. But, indeed, for his
indefatignble persevernnce, his
courageous dofiance of all risks
of foilure, his remarkable saga-
city in matters of business, and
the influence which attached to
his support, the whole project,
notwithstanding the great exer-
tions which had been. made to
seeure it realisation, must have
fallen to the ground. The ma-
torely coneidered views of his
Royal Highness, and the po-
triotic objects he propuosed in
making this great peace.
offering to mankind, are
admirably set fortk in the
sﬁeeeh delivered by him on
the oecasion of the banquet
given by Mr, Alderman
Farneomb, then Liord Mayor
of London, to the municipal
authorities of the United
Kingdom in suppor* of the
roject. “ The Exhibition
of 1851 would,” he esid,
“afford a true test of the
point of development ab
which the whole of mankind
has arrived in this great
task, and & new starting
point from which all netions
would be able to direct their
further exertions.” It is
difficult to assign to Prince
Albert the degree of praize
which is really his due on
this occasion without in-
curring the suspicion of
being in some degree in-
fluenced by the exalted
position he holds in the




country. “It is" seys Coleridge, “one of the most mis-
chievous effects of flattery that it renders honourable natures
more glow and reluctant in_ expresmmg thoir resl feclings
in praise of the deserving, than for the interests of truth
and. virtue might bo desired.” The remark spplies with
eculiar foree to o person of His Royal Highnegs's runk.
ther than ineur the imputation of sycophaney, his admirers
have sometimes been led to do less than justice to the very pro-
minent part he has faken in this project, and to the con-
summste skill with which he hus smoothed down a1l opposition
toit, In o wori, for the World's Exhibition, the world is
entirely indebted to the Prince Consort,

On the 20th of June, 1849, ot & mecting, at Buckinghom
Palace, of several of the pentlemen, who afterwards beeame
members of the Royal Commission, and Prince Albert, his
Royal Highness cormmunicated his pinn for the formation of a
great collection of worke of Industry and Art in London, in
1861, for the purposes of exhibition, of compotition, and of
encouragement; when he proposed that these contributions
shuuld coneist of four grent divisions, namely : raw materials ;
machinery and mechanicsl inventions; manufactures; and
sculpture and plustie art generally; and the best proof we
could adduce of the sagncity by which hia suggestions were

HISTORY OF THE GREAT EXNIIBITION.

choracterised i to be found in the brillinnt snccess which
hay attended their almost literal adoption. At the seco-ndl
meeting for the same object, held at Osborne House on the
14th July, 1848, which was attended among other distinguished
supporters of the project, by the late Sir Robert Peel, His
Royel Highnees gave n general outline of the plan of opera-
tions he recommended, which met with the unanimous
approbation of his fellow labourers, These suggestions
comprised the formation of 2 Roysl Commission, ita duties and
powers: the definition of the nature of the Exhibition, and of
the best mode of conducting its proceedinga ; the determing
tion of the method of deciding tho prizes, and the reaponsibility
of the decision; and the rmeana of raising n prize fund, md
providing for the necessary expenses which the permonent

establishment of quinquennial exhibitions would involve,
amount which it way proposed to distribute in prizes was
20,0004, and the lowest estimate for & suitable building did |
not fall below 50,000/ He ulso pointed out the advantages
of the site which has since been ted, nnd recommended an
early application to the crown for permission to approprinte it.
Impressed with the truth of the proverb, Ce n'est gue le
premier pas gui eofits, the council of the Society of Arts, after
much fruitleas negotintion with other parties, enteved into an |

The | h

engagament with Messrs, Mundny, the well-kmown con
biY which those gentlemen undertook to deposit o r
of 20,000L; to erect » suitable building ; to find of
advance the money requisite for all preliminary expen:
to take the whole risk of lose ; on the following conditic
20,0002, prize fund, the cost of the building, and five
on all sdvances, to be repaid out of the first recely
residue to be divided into three equal parts; one pa

nid over ab once to the Society of Avrte, in aid of futy
giﬁons; and out of the other two parts all other in
costs, mach as those of general management and pre
expenses ; the residue, if any, to be the remuneratio
contractore for their ontlay, trouble, and risk, Messrs,
subsequently eonsented, instead of this division, to
such part of the surplus only, if any, ns after payme
expenses might be awarded by arbitration. An e
committee of four members, who hecame subseque:
exerutive committee of the Royal Commission, w
formed, who induced the contractors to allow t
ofltion of defermining the contract any time before
of February, 1860. In such an event, howevar,
Munday's cluims to compensation for their outlay 1
were to be adjusted by arbitration, After remsining
their money more thon a yeur, Mesars. Munday obtai
recently, sn award of 50007, with intereat,

The peeuniary port of the undertaking having th
provided for, the next ob{l'ect was to satisfy the govern
the desire of the publio for the proposed “Exhibition,
to warrant the jesue of & Ho af Commission for ita )
ment. ‘With this view, = deputation from the E.
Committes proceeded to the munufacturing districts ¢
tha necassary information ; and after visiting sixty-five
most important towns and cities of the United K
brought back with them sirong manifestations of the

| denive in the shope of documents in which nearly &,

fluential persous had registered their names as pr
of the project. About the same time Mr, Seoti

nving occadion to visit several of the etates include:
Zollverein, found that the advantages which it offered
commerce of the world were everywhere apprecint
received the most eordinl offers of co~operation from
number of influential persons in those countries.

preseaiution of these reports to the government, the
Commigsion was issued, and at their Arat meeting an t
Janusry, 1860, they decided on vailing themselves
electivniwhich had Been reserved for them by the So

AkARBA

(]




tractors,
ize fund
Lces ; to
ses ; and
ma: The
Pper cent
M ; the
1t to be
e exhi-
widental
liminary
n of the
Munday
' receive
nt of nll
xecative
otly the
a8 then
iem the
the first
Megsrs,
wd risk
r ouf of
aed very

s been
ment of
i order
manage-
xecufive
o colleck
a of the
ingdom,
popuiar
000 in-
omoters
Russell,
d in the
to the
ad, and
& great
Origr the
+ Royal
he 11tk
i of the
ciety of

e e

HISTORY OF THE GREAT EXHIBITION.

Arts, and rescinded the contract with Mesers, Munday;
thus relying for their means of earrying out their views, In
the first instance, wholly upon voluntary contributions.

How the appeal of the Commissioners to the country
was respondaf te is sufficiently known. Mpeetings having
taken. pisce in all parts of the United Kingdom, subseriptions
begon to flow in, in & highly encourpging manner. On the
17th of October, 1848, the Lord Mayer of London enlled o
ineeting ot the Egyptinn Hail to receive » deputation of the
members of the Bociety of Arts, charged by Prinee Albert to
explain the ovtlines of His Royal Highnese's propoual for a
Great Exhibition of the Induatry of All Naticus, to be held in
London, in the year 185L This meeting was attended by
petrly four bundred of the most infuentinl merchants, bankers,
and traders, of London, and nothing could be more cordinl
than the spirit displayed by almosk every persen who nssisted
at it. Mr. Cole, who was the exponent of Prince Alberi’s
views on the oceasion, gnve, in a speevh of coneiderable
ability, an interesting aceount of the reveption the project
had met with from gne large body of manufieturers in the

rovinees, whose adlesion he had succeeded in obtaining.

he feeling in favour of an international Exhibition appears to
have been almost umanimous. Other meetings in t
and other parta of the metropelis, wers subsequently held, and
a large amount of subscriptions eollected.  Whilst matters
were progressing thus favoursbly, the Lord Mayor of London
concelved the magnificent ides of inviting the chief magie-
trafes of the various towns, citien, and boreughs, throughout
the United Kingdom, to & grend banguet, at the Mansion-
Houge, with the view of premoting the success of the Bxhi-
bition. The results of thia réunion wers, in the highest degree,
satisfactary. Nearly the whelo body of provincial Mayors
aceepted the invitation, and were thus inapired with something
like & pereonal interest in the success of the undertaking.
They had, moreover, the advantnge of recciving Prince Albert's
explanations from his own lips. Among the voices raised in
favour of an international Exhibition on this ocession, were
those of Lord John Russell, Lord Stanley, the Archbishop of
Canterbury, the French Ambassedor, and the late lamented
Siv Hobert Peel. On the suceeeding day s meeting of the
publie funetionaries who were present at the dinner, took
glnca in the Fgayptian Hall for business purposes, when the

all wag set moving in good earnest.
ving revised their origina} intention

{he Commissioners

ciby, | p

te give large maney prizes, invited, by public advertisement,
griiats of all countries to compete for the designe for
the reverses of three brouze medais intended to form the
respective prizes, which should be illustrative of the objects ot
the Exhibition ; and offered three prizea of 100I. each for the
three subjects which should be selected for that purpose, and
three prizes of 50 for the three beat designewhich might not be
accepted. Tn consequence of this advertisement no fewer than
one hundred and twenty-nine designe were gent in, and wers
Pclil;ﬁcly exhibited in the rooms of the Royal Society of Avta.
judges np%ointed by tbe Commissioners were Lord
Colborne, W. Dyee, Fsq, R.A, J. Gibeon, Bey, R.A,
M. Bugene Lami, C. Newton, Eeg., Herr J, D. Passavant,
and Dr. Gusteve Waagen ; who on the 26th June decided in
favour of the following gentlemen:—The first prizes of 1004,
each, were awarded to, 1. Hyppolyte Bonnardel, of Paris. 2.
Leouard C. Wyon, of London. 3. G. G. Adams, of London.
The second prizes of 60 ench, were awarded to, 4. John
Hancock, of London. 5. L. Wiener, of Brussella. 6. M.
G , of Paris,
he medol of M. Boupardel is decidedly the most ambi-
tious of the three. It repregenta Britannis standing on a
latform, with outstretehed arms, and a crown in each hand
with which she is in the aet of deeorating, simultaneously, the
brows of Mereury, and a fomale he is holding by the hand,
who may be presumed to be Industry. TFlags of differens
nations make up the background, Motto— Est etimm in
naguo wwﬂam respublice mundo.”

Mr. Wyon’s design represents Britannia seated and in the
aet of placing a Inurel wreath upon the head of a figure emble-
matieal of Industrlg whilst she extends her right hand as if to
roise her up. Behind her are impersonations of the four
quarters of the globe by whom Industry bas been condueted
to Britannia. To the might are emblema of the four sections:
1. The cotton plant and whentsheaf; 2. A wheel; 8. A bule
fif goods; 4. A vase. Motto—* Dissocinta locia concordi pace

gavit."”

Mr. Adams's medal presents a gracefully modelled group of
Fome crowning Indusiry, and Commerce lovking on with
approving eye. Industry bae o dwstaff in her laod, and
upielm to be sitting on a cornucopia.

July, 1850, letters patent were issued, incorporating
the Commissioners under the title of * The Commiseionera for
the Exhibition of 1851,” and the charter was accepted on the
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16th August. A guarantee fund of 230,000L had been | objects imported, the government wee indueed to treat
mbaeﬁb‘;ﬁuby a limited number of gentlemen, favourable o | Exhibition as a bonded warehouse. On the 31st of Oct
the Exhibition, one of whom cpened the list with a subserip- | 1850, the last day oo which applications for space cou
tion of 50,000{. Upon this security the Bank of England | entertained, the whole of the demands for horizontal |
undertook to make the necessary advances. On the 21st of | and counter) space exceeded 417000 superficiol feet; 1
February preceding, the Building Committee ventured to | beyond the amount of available space for the United King
recommendp that apwards of sixteen acres should be covered in. | by sbout 210,000 superficial feet. Every class ap

With o view to give Foreign natious as mnuch time for - however to hove been satisfied with the fioal allocm
grepu.mtinn a8 possible, the Connmissioners resolved, Jong  which were the best that could bave been made unde

efore they had decided on the size and charseter of the  circumstances.
building, to divide a certain large extent of space among | When the time arrived ror mnkiug definite arranget
foreign countries, amounting in the whole to 210,000 super- | for the erection of the building, the Commissioners had
ficinl feet, or rather more than the entire space which France | 35,0004 in hand ; and, notwithstanding the guarnuter o
had cceupied for its two ezpositions of 1844 nnd 1849, | they had themselven lorgely subscribed, they must hav.
Bulequently, the quantities of space allotted to foreign pations | themselves committed to a very deep responsibility. No
was incressed; ¥rance obtaining 65,000 feet instead of 50,000. | dounted, however, an invitation was addressed, throug
A definite amount of space proportioned to their presumed | public prints, to architects of all nations, to furnish desig
wants was also allotted to each of the Britisk Colonies. | an edifice, the roof of whick was te cover 700,000 square
‘With the view of nvoiding, in the first instimee, the confusion | and the ares of which, including the open spaces, was 3
that would have arisen from the collection of duties for the | exceed 800,000 feet. Other conditions were enumerated

T i §
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showed that the whele of the details had been carefully and
judiciously considered. Although the time allowed for the

HISTORY OF THE GREAT EXIIBITION,
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| diffienlty in getting their tenders ready by the 10th of May,
On that day, however, nineteen were sent jn; bui of these

preparation of the drawings was oniy & month, there were no | only eight professed to comprehend the execution of the whole
fewer than two hundred and thirty-three competitors, many of | of the work. The mmounis of the remaining eleven com-

whom sent in desigus of o highly elaborate character, Of these,
thirty-eight, or one-sisth of the whole, were from foreigners;
128 from London and its vicinity ; and 51 from the provineial
towns of Eugland. The duty of examining, classitying, and
coumparing them, devolved on Mr. Dighy Wyatt, who embodied
the result of his investigation in & report. = After fifteen pro-
trocted mittings, the Building Committee arrived at the

“ ypanimone conclusion that, able and admirable as many of

these designs appesred to be, there was yet no single one so
accordant with the fpeculiar objects in view, either in the
principle, or detail of its arrangements, as to warrant them in
recommending it for adoption.” This report was presented
to the Royal Commissioners on the Sth of May. The rejection
of the whole of the plans of the competing architcets created,
as was natural, no erdinary dissatisfaction ; a feeling which was
i no respect diminished by the fact that the Building Com.
wittee had prepared a plan of their owmn; and, assisted by
Mr, Dighy Wyatt, Mr. Charles Heard Wild, and Mr. Owen
Jones, hnd eompleted extensive working drawings which they
had caueed to be lithographed, Their next step wos to issue
invitations for tenders to erect the building; requesting from
the respective competitors, in addition, such suggestione and
modifieations, necompanied by estimates of cast, 28 might seem
liltely to effect a reduction in the general expense, The de-
sign of the Building Committee comprebended an edifiee 2200
feet long, aud 450 feet wide. Into any detailed deseription

of it, however, it is foreign ko our purpose to enter; suffice it to |

say that this child of many fathers wag condemned, not lese
for its extraordinary ugliness, than that it would have been
unneevssrily large, cumbrous, and costly, for a purpose

avomediy temporary.  Meanwhile, the contractois found some |

petitors varied from 120,000 to 150,0000.: and this, for the
use only of the materials for the building. The Building
Committee defended their edifice in sn elaborate repart,
| setting forth its economy and good taste. Publie opinion
| was, however, decidedly against its adoption ; and fortunately,
4 gentleman, not an architeet, came “{o the rescue.”
Among the contraetors who had accepted the invitation et
the Building Committee, was the firm of Fox & Henderson,
| who, availing themselves of the permission to alter and amend
| the plan of the Committee, contained in the latter part of the
l report, presented 4 tender for a building of an entirely different
character from that which had been suggested by the Com.
| mittee,  This, we need scarcely add, wos the plan whieh,
| with certnin modifications and odditions, was ultimately
| adopted ; and for which, notwithstanding oll that has been
|sai to the contrary, the public is wholly indebted ta
Mr. Paxton. He was, a8 he himeell tells us, at that tine
! vecupied in erecting a house for the Victoria Regia, in the
' ens of the Duke of Devonshire, at Chateworth, and to that
| circumetance the Crystal Palace may be soid to owe its direct
'origin.  The aceounts whieb have been given by Mr. Paxton,
Mr. Fox, and Mr. Barry, of their respective shares in the
production of the accepted plan, are not strictly reconcilenble
with each other; but that the iden, in a state of maturity
which demanded no great effint of mind to make it moye
compicie, originated with 2r. Pnxton, does not admit of a
question. The very nature of that idea which rendered n
| single section of the building completely explanatory of the
whole, would seetn to have rendered elaborate plina of the
pro;l:oaed edifice, in its entirety, less n work of mind than of
mechanieol dexierity. A single bay of 24 feet square would,
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if we except the transept ond ite semicireular roof, supply the
means of making a correct drawing of the whole; and if it be
carrect, s stated by Mr. Paxton at the dinuer given to him at
Derby, on the 6th of Aupust, that his original sketch on 2
sheet of blotting paper indieates the prineipal features of the
building a8 it now stends as much o8 the most finished
deawings which have been made since, there ean be no excuse
for sttempting to_deprive him of any portion of the merit of
the ipvention. But he appears to huve done considerably
more than merely furnish the idea. In nine days from that
on which he bad mode the blotting paper sketch, he wes in

ossession of nine plans, all, with & single exception, prepared

y his own hand.  And although his supgestion to Messra.
Fox & Henderson was offered o late aa the 22nd June, 1850,
liis pian was engraved and published in the JZustrated News
of the 6th July, There ean be no doubt that the great
experience of Mr. Fox eoabled him, nfter consuliing with

Mr. Cole, to adapt the drawings more to the arrangen
adopted by the Cowmittee in the plan they had theme
prepared, than Mr. Pazton had done: but in & cose
this, the first idea is considerably more thag half the b
Mr. Fox prepured, he teils ue, the werking drawings, and
everything Bhi]p-shnpe; but to the fuilest extent he a
that all the leoding fentures of the plam, ineluding
Emgresaiva improvement of any importabce, were sugg

the criginator of the general idea. At one of the mee
of the Building Committes, it wme suggested thai
transept, at the eacrifice of not dividing the bui
into two equal parts, should include the lorger treea
there appeared to bes good deal of diffioulty in adopting
a recommendation, as st that fime the whole of the roo
intended to be flat. Having promised to ses what cou
done in the matter, Mr. Paxton secompanied Mz, Tox
office, and whilst he wae occupied ic mranging the pr
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plan, 8o as to brieg the trees into the centre, he “ hit upon E great measure, to depend for their means of fulfilling their
the idena of eovering the traneept with & circular roof, similar ' proposals, Mesara. Fox & Henderson sent in their renders, and
to that; on the great conservatary ot Chataworth, and made a on the 16th were verbally informed that they were accepted.
sketeh of it, which was copied that night by one of Mr. Fox's  On the 26th July, the Committes expressed o wish that they
draughtsmen.” In a recent letter to the *“Times™ nmews- should commenco operations; but as ne Royal ¢'harter could
paper, My, Burry, in reference to this stotement, declares be obtained wniil the sueceeding vear, and as the solicitor
that at the firsk presentation of Mr. Poxton'e design to the to the Tieasury was of opinion that until that hsd been
Building Committee, n3 weil a8 to the Royal Commission, obtained, the Commissioners eculd not legnlly act, the works
ond before he had offered any suzgestion on the subject, must have stoud still, bub for the good understanding and
he recommended, very strongly, the addiction of n vaulted mutusl confidence, which subsisted between Messrs. Foxr &
roof, not only to the tramsept, but also over the nave; Henderson and themeelves. HRather than that auy delay
and submitted to the Commissioners a sketeh showing the should take place, they agreed to proceed at once, and to incur
effoct of such au addition. The probability, therefore, is, the risk whatever it might be of waiting for the Royal Charter.
that the two gentlemen hit upon the same idea at pretty To avoid unnevessary complication, Mr. Williun Cubitt was
uearly the same moment. Thers fs, however, at all events, | invested with absolute power to arrange with Aessps. Kox &
ne pretext for imputing to either of them n desire to cliim Hendersan all the details eonnected with the arduous task on
foe himeelf 2 merit which does not belong to hin. The which they were about to enter. On the 30th J uly, they
Ruyal Commisstuners themeselves, in their official report, ubtained possession of the ground, and procecded to take the
distinetly ackuewlge the services which were rendered necessary levels and surveys, and to fix the position ot
to the edifice by Mr. Barry's judicious suggestions, and the various poiots. The working drawings, all of which he
whilst they compliment Mr. Paxton on the ®grand effect made himself, occupied Mr. Fox 18 hours s day for
produced by his happy ides of raising the semi-cylin. seven weeks; and as these lofi his hands, his partner Mr.
drical vault of the transept above tvhe tiers of termces Henderson directed the Erepm‘atinn of the iron work and other
which extend on either side of it uckuowledge that, “for materials required for the constrmetion of the building. As
much of its grece of Kﬁapurtiun and beputy of form, the the drawings proceeded, caleulstions of strength were entered
building is indebted to Mr. Bapry;” and that““upon the form into; and so s0cn as a number of the important parts were
anid distribution of the arches and filling in frames, a3 well a8 of prepared, such 88 the cast-iron girders and wrougzht-iron
the colimus, the sugsestions of that gentleman exercised 4 trusavs, Mr., Cubitt was invited to witness o st of experiments
happy influence”  We doubt, however, it the adoption of illustrative of the ecurreetniss of these calenlations, The
theee suggestions should be allowed to detraet in any respect greatest load it was possible for it to receive having been
from the éclat due to DMr. Paxton ge the legitimato parent placed upon each pavt, it waa distinetly ehown that it would
of the Crystal Palace, gem' four times that weight without a tracture.  As the worka

After consulting the iron masters, glass manufacturers,  advanced, the satety of the edifice wos much discussed in the
and others, on whose co-operation they were compelled, in a  public prints, and grave doubty of its stability baving been

i y b3 ERs e e B h R S
BT "';_’.:: ,_"T"_!L" =
0




sugrested by Mr. Turner, the constructor of the large con-
servotory in Kew Gardrns, and by Professor Aircy the
Astronomer Royn, a serice of experiments wngy decided on
which shoold set any such queation wholly ab rest. Tests had,
a8 we have shown, been applied in the course of the work
which had satisfled the seientific men who witnessed them that
the iron girders would benr a strain wpon them four times
as great as they could ever be called upon to bear; but it was
resolved to subject them to a still severer ordeal.

The first of these more elaborote experiments, which
took place in the presence of Her Mujesty, Prince Albert, and
meveral scientific persons, was to ascertuin the extent of oveilla-
tion that would be produced in the gnlleries by the regulor
motion of large bodies of persons. Three hundred workmen
were accordingly deploved over the platform, and then
crowded together ng closely as possible. ‘The lond borne by the
planks lnid across the platform represented the degree of
preseure that would be ocensioned by the erowdiug of the buys
of the pallerice, The amount of deflection produced by this
experiment was searcely perceptible. The men mext walked
regularly and irregulazly, and finelly ran over the temporary

fioor, with little more effet, Even when packed in the elosest |
" that before the Commissioners had opened their doo

otder, and jumping simulisnecusly for severnl minutes, the

lay of the timbers and the wrought-iron work, was sdmirably
geveiuped, and the extreme deflection of amy one girder did
not exceed & guarter of an inch. As, however, the workmen
were unable to kee‘r military time in their step, the whole
corps of Sappers and Miners employed op the ground, arranged
in close ur:m'. marched severnl times over and around the
bays without producing any other eflect than is observable in
8 house in which daneing is going on. The erowning experi-
ment suggested by Mesars. Maudsiay & Field, the eminent
civil engineers, rendered any further test wholly unnecessary.
Seven frames, ench capable of holding 36 canuon-balls, of 64lba
each, were constructed, and drawn with their contents aver
the floor. In this way a pressure on the flooring of seven and

HISTORY OF THE GREAT EXMIBITION.

n-half tons was obtained ; the probable pressure from
pot exceeding 05ib. The pressure of an ordinary cror
ever, ot & public meeting or o theatre doss not exce:
to the aquare foot.

During the entire progress of the building, Mr.
present dojly at the worke, to aseign to each part, as i
upon the ground, its proper position, without which
have been impossible that the building should have b
Eleted in time; and so unlimited was the confidence «

¥ his firm in the Royal Commissioners, that it
until the 3Lst of October that the contract wil
wos completed ; up to which time they bad not only
no order fur the building, end no payment on accow
work they hod done, but had inewrred the risk of e
upwards of B0,0007 without being in o legal positio
upon the Commissioners for the repayment of any pori
T?:ere whs, however, oo ground for apprehension on
of finance ; for whilst the work was yet in progress, fi
flowing in to the exehequer of the exeeutive with o rapi
gether unlooked for, snd to an amount which wns enld
silence all further noxiety on the subject. To antic
some respects, the order of our narrative, we may

publie, that s to say on the 20th of April, they had
1130444, :—namely, 64,344/, arising from public subs
32001 from Messre. Spicer & Clowen for the pri
prioting the Catnlogues; 56007 from Messrs. Sehv
the privilege of supplying refreshments; and 40,000
from the sale of senson tickets. The last item o
tolerable notion of the probable prospeets of the B
in & financial point of view; mor have those exp
sanguine as they were, heen in any respeet disappoir
It is now time to enter upon the history of theiuild
and of the manner in which the contractors have fulf
duty to their employers nud to the publie at lnrge.
The mite of the Grent Exhibition is the one

\

FHR MAIN AVENCE-EAT.

XX




a crowd
wd, how-
wl GOLbs.

Fox was
t nrrived
it would
eEn com-
lisplayed
wWoe nob
th them
received
nt of the
xpending
m to call
don of it
the score
mds were
dity alto-
:ulated to
sipate, in
- mention
rs to the
in hand
criptions;
vilege of
veppe, lor
M, arising
forded a
xhiibition,
eckations,
ied.
ling itsclf,
illed their

originally

— B
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proposed for it Dy HL.R.H. Prince Albert. It consists of a
rectangular piece of ground in Hyde Park, situated hetween

the Queen's Vrive and Rotten How, and contains abouf 26 |
acres, being 2300 feet in length, hy 600 feet in breadth, Is |

prineipal frontage extends from enst to weat. Several lofty treee
which stretch across the centre of its length have been sallowed
to remain, and it is to them we are indebted for the mugnificent
transept and semicirenlar voof, suggested nfter the first plans
had received the approval of the Commissioners. The grovad
aithough apparently level has a fall of from 1 to 260 inches
from west to east. Ameng the most striking advantages of the
apot were the facilities of access from ail parts which it pre.
gented, and the ease with which it could be deained and supplied
with gas and water; whilst the beanty of the neighbourhood
ean searcely be exeeeded within the same convenient distance
fram the metropoliz, Indeed, however streng may have been
the private objections urged ngninst the adoption of this
site, in the first iustance, it 16 now universally admitted that
& more desirable loealisy for the purpose 1o which it has been
eonverted could mok huve been selected. The plan of the
building forms a parallelogram 1848 feet long and 408 feet
wide; independently of & projection on the north side, 48 feet
wide and 986 feet long. ~ The prineipal entrauce is situated
in the centre of the south side, opposite to Prince of Waleg'
gate, which forms one of the main openingas into Hyde Park.
After passing through a vestibule 72 feet by 48, the visitor
finds himself in the transepl, which is 72 feet wide, 108 feet
kigh, snd 408 feet from south to north. The roof springs
in & semi-cylindrical form from an elevation of 68 feet
from the ground, and occupies a dismeter of 72 feet. The

coup d'wil of the exterior of the building from the Prince of

Weles' Gate is exceedmgly striking. On each side of the
space covered by the transept runs an aisle 24 feet wide. The
neve or prand avenne, 72 feet wide by 64 feer high, occupics
the centre throughout the entire length of the building, and

is 1848 feet long. On either side smaller avenues or aislea
run parallel with it 24 feet in width, and at a height of
24 feet from the ground are galleries, which not unly extend
the whole length of the building, but which ore earried
completely round the transept; thus opening a divect eom-
munication throughout the whole of that floor, Beyond
the nearest nisles and parollel with them nt & distance of
48 fept, are second nisles of similar width, with galleriea
over $hem, which are on the same level ns those by
| which the outside sislee are surmounted, To facilitate
access from one line of galleries to the other, bridges, at
frequent intervals, the 48-feet avenues, and, st the same
time, divide them into courts, most of which have been mo
arvanged as to be open to the spectator, who may bappen
to be in the gallery above. The width of 48 feet
thus eubdivided, and the second aisles, are roofed ever
at o height of 4% feet from the ground. The remaining
i portion of the building comprises in width only one story
24, feet ligh, in which, of eourse, there are no galleries.
Access to the galleries is oblained by ten double staircases,
8 feet wide. About its centre, the grand avenue, ata point
determined by the position of three large trees which it
wag resolved to enclose, is crossed by the traveept. Two
other groups of trees, whose immolation was aleo inierdicted,
have rendered open courts neeessary ; but they are, neverthe-
' less, ineluded within the building. The enbire area enclosed
and roofed over comprises no fewer than 772,784 square feet;,
or about 19 acres ; thus presenting an edifice about four times
the sizea of B8t. Peter's, at Rome, and eix times that of
§t. Paul's.  'We have already described the principal entrance
| at the south front, Besides this, there is one ak each end,
and, at convenient intervals, no fewer than fifteen places of
egress, The horizontal measure of 24 feet, which formed a
lending feature of the design of the Building Cemnittee, is
also preserved in the present plan, ‘The avenues infe which
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the building is divided are formed by hollow cast-iron eolumng,
24 feet apart, which rige in one, two, or three storiea respee-
tively. In the lower story these columns ave 19 feet high,
snd in the two upper ones 17 feet. Between the ditferent
columns short bars of iron, 3 feet in length, called * connect-
ing pieces,’ from the uee to which they arve applied, are
emploved us suﬁforts to the girders in horizental tiers,
dividing the building, at its sreatest leight, into the three
storiea to which we have already referred. The pirders, of
which, some of cast, and some of wrought-iron, are all of
the wmne depth, namely, 8 feet, with the exception of four;
an acrangenent by which the horizontal lines sre preserved
throughout.

T'he first impression conveyed to the mind of a visitor, inexpe-
rienced in the science of architecture,on entering the bmlding, is
a sense of inseeurity, arising from the appareut lightiess of its
supporty ng compared with the vasthess of its dimensione,  Bug
this feeling is soon dizsipated when he is informed how severety
the strength of every separate part has been tested, and with
what extreme care the connexion of all the supports with each
ather has been considered, e0 a8 to present the greatest
possible combination of strength. The ratlines of a ship of
war, abd the wires of o suspension bridge, may have little
retentive power per se, but when ‘]udieiuusly connected with
otier supports, offer a resistance whick a superfieial observer
would be little likely to understand. The lightness of its
proportions indicates, ot o giance, the nature of the material
which forms the wein supports of the building; and whilst
those which ave vertical consist cutirely of east-iron, the
horizontal * connecting pieces ' and girders are eonstructed
both of wrought aud cast-iron.  OF wrought-ivon 830 tons
have been employed; but of cast<iron Messrs. Fox and
Henderson have used no fewer than 3500 tons, The whole

of the roof above the hichest fier or story of iron frame
eoneista of wood and gluss, and the external enclosur
fase.work are composed, for the mest part, of the
materials, In the eniire edifice there have been em
80600 superficial feet of glasy, and, ineluding the fic
60U,000 of woed. In those parts of the building whi
two or more stories or tiera in height, the upper tiers
gupport gulleries, beivg only intended to give add
stability to the eclumus. The highest tier is in all
devoted to the support of the root; an arrangement
forms n rather remarkeble feature of the edifice.
other striking examples of the ingenuity of the orig
and conatructors of the Crysial Palace is the ridy
furrow roof, by which the rain water is distribute
equal portions, and all ordinary chances of overflow a
and the peeuliar formation of the floer, which is a “ b
wooden pathwny,” with spoaces between each board
wiich, on ewceping, “the dust at once disappean
falls into the voeuity below.” Ii moy also be thor
woahed without discomfort, for the water disappe:
fost as the dust through the interstives; snd the

become fit for visitors almoat immedintely afterwards.

is one drawback on its adoption, however, of whicl
visitors to the Exhibition must have had experience; wl
it is laid transversely it is extremely troublesome t
over, ba the boards ever so evenly placed. Into te
minutie connected with the erection of the building, =
eimplification of labour by its constructors, it is no |
our design to enter. Those who may be interested i
details, will find them duly set forth n the vificial rec
the Commigsioners, Many of them deserve praise fo
ingenuity ; and the speed enforced upon Mesirs.

| IHenderson, in the covstruction of the Crystad Palace
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legs to be deplored, ag it necossitated experiments which have
vreated important facilities for the butlders of future edifices
of this description. There are, however, some details yet to
be recorded, without which the present sketch, althongh
addressed to the general reader culy, could hardly he con-
sidered complete, The total aren of the ground floor is,
as we have already stated, 772,74 square feet, and that

of the galieries, 217,100 square feet. The extent of the Intter |

is wearly a mile. The total cubie contents of the building are
33,000,000 feet; there are nearly 2300 cast-iron girders, and
458 wrought-iron trusses fur supperting the palleries and
roof; B0 miles of gniter for carr ing water to the colwmns;
2(112 miles of saalt bars; and 4KA,000 superticial feet of
pluse.

The decoration of the Eshibition of the Industry of all
Nations was entrusted to Mr. Owen Jones, and some appre-
hensions were entertained, in the first instance, that the eom-
bination of deep blues, reds, and yellows, would produce too
glaring an effect upon the eve, Mr. Jones has, however, by
toning down his colours, and calenlating the effect of n
Lwmg perspective upon them, produced a result which has
met with very genernl approbation. The outside of the
building, which has pot atforded him the advantages pre-
eented by the perspeetive of the interior, bas not been eon-
sidered xﬂaite so sucvessful. At the enst and west ends
considerable spaces have been enclosed for the exhibition of
objects, the weight and dimensions of which precluded their
adwittance withing among thems, lurge blocks of marble, stone,
slate, eonl, msphalte pavements, aml gorden and monumental |
orpaments, At the western end, and consuderably beyond
the recognived precinets of the Exhibition, is the fine colossal
model for & statue of Richard Coeur de Lion, of the Baron
Marochetti, About 165 feet from the north-west angle is an
engine-house, 96 feet by 24, for generating the steamn which
gives motion to the various machines which require to be

steacture is sissibir iy character to that of the main edifiee.
It contains five boilers, of 150 horse power, and a large tank,
serving as o balance head to the water supply,  With this is
connceted o sbx-inch main, which runs completely round the
Estibition, on whivh, at intervals of 240 feet, pre ploced fire-
cocks; and, at different poings in its eircuit, 16 four-ineh
heaiwh pipes supply the water pequisite for the purposes of
the builling. The mains, which run along the north and
| south sides of the building, are connected across the transept
by z five-inch main, fecar which, near the centre of the build-
ing, pipes branch out for the supply of the varicus fountains
erocted on the central line of the mave; nor hoa the more
substantial convenicnea of the visitors been overluoked ; large
refreshment rooms and eounters, with corresponding waiting-
rooms, have becn provided around the broes at the northern
extremity of the transept, and adjoining the open eonrts,
at the eastern aud western ends.  The oflicial bustness of the
Exhibition demanding the services of a Jarge stall’ of clerks,
amplo accommodntion has been provided for them in oflices
Placed on esch eido of the southern entranve; whilst, for
money nnd eheck-takees, venders of Uatalogues, ete., & con-
siderable space has been appropriated at the enstern and
western extremities of the building, as well as on each gide of
the principal entrance.

Although all vljections to the use of the sile in Hyde Pavk
by the Commissioners vanished ns the building advanced
towarde eompletion, they had been compelled to bind theu-
selves by 2 deed of eovenant to remove it, and resign the
ground Into the hands of the Commissioners of Woods and
Tovests, within seven months after the close of the Exhibition.
This ageeement rendered an appeal to parlinment indispen-
aghle. Alfter much discussion, in bhoth houses, and elsew here,
o respite of one year hae been manted; an armngement
which appears to have been perteetly watisiactory to all, save
a few dissentients who either reside ur posscss praperty in

exlibited in operation. The exiernal appearance of this

the inmediate neighboushood.  Blr. Paxton's motion from the
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first appears to bave been to convert it into & winter garden I sppointment, This munifesto mentions thab  for
when 1t ghall have answered its present purpose. ¢ pestion of the principle of this structure, the Comm
Whatever credit may be claimed by the Executive Com- | are indebted to Mr. Joseph Pazton, and expresse
mittee, much is due fo the contractors, Messrs. Fox and | that the undertaking, which has for its end the p
Henderson, for the nlmost superhuman exertions which were | of all branches of human industry, and the stren
mnde by them to enable the commissioners to open the Ex-  of the bonds of peace and friendship among all n
hibition ‘on the 1st of May. Such wne the extrmordinsry | the carth, may, under God's blessing, conduce to th
engerness of the public to be present at its inauguration, that | of Her Majesty's people, and o long remembered at
upwards of 40,0001, of season tickets were disposed of on the | brightest incidents of her peareful and happy reign.”
29th of April; and but for the restriction that the holders of | 'To this address, Iler Majesty returned a most
senson tivkets only should be ndmitted to thia ceremony, the | answer, and the Archbishop of Canterbury having ins
place would doubtiess have overfiowed with visitors. It is not | blessing of the Almighty on the undertaking, the «
our intention to enter into minute details of the eircum- | terminated with the performance of the Hallehuah ¢
stances whieh attended its inaupurativn; they were in every | the united choirs of the Chapel Boyal, St. Paul's, Wer
respect worthy of the ocension. 1t was opened by Her Majesty | Abbey, nnd St. Guorge’s Chapel, Windsor. The p

in person, accompanied by the Royal Family, and attended by | included all the nFersona who had been officially engag
the members of Eer cabinet, and by all the officers and lndies | work; the royal and foreign commissioners, Her .

of her court. S0 soon as the music which hailed her entry | ministers, the whole of the lords and lndies of the
liad censed, H.R.H. Prince Albert, as President of the Roral | waiting, and the foreign mnbassaders.  The vast bu

[ Commissioners, read a report of their proceedings since bheir ' propuetions of the building, the richness nnd tastet

!
|
|
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the costumes, and the large number (25,000) of well-dressed
persons assembled on the cccasion, rendered its inauguration
onpof the most imposing sights that had ever heen witnessed in
this eountry. But 1t iz not mn her vegal capacity alone that Hen
Majesty has deigned to honour the Great Exhibition with hep
eountenwnee. Day after duy, accompanied by her children, and
often ab much personal inconvenienee, hag she fiattered the
various exhibitors by eareful examinations of their produe-
tions; until it may fairly be presumed that there ia searcely
one of her subjects who has more thoroughly inapected all
that is worthy of attention within its walls than she has done,
Whatever may have been the weather, or however crowded
the interior, ler Majesty has devoted, almost daily, until the
cloge of the session of parliament released her from attendance
in London, several hours to visits to the Crystal Paloee ; in-
specting eaeh department in suceession, and selecting from
many of them such objects as gratified her taste, or were, for
ather reasons, considered to possess claims upon Ler attention.

On entering the building, for the first time, the eye ia
completely duzzled by the rich variety of hues which burst
upen it on every side; and it ia not unfil this partial bewilder-
ment has subsided, that we are in n condition to appreciate as
it deserves its real magnificence and the harmenious benuty of
effeot produced by the artisticol arrangement of the glowing
and varied hues which blaze along its grand and sim Ilg;a lines,
After pasaing through the southern enirance, the whole extent
of the trensept, interrupted only by the megnificent glass foun-
tain of Messra. Osler, aud the groups of seulpture and tropiea)
plants and trees, that are intermixed throughout, flashes on
the eye more like the fabled palace of Vathek, than a strue-
ture reared in u few months by mortal bands, On either
gide, as well throughout ite centre, are ramged groups of
statuary by Baily, MacDowell, Foley, Marshall, Loogh, Bell,
Marochettl, Wyott, Watson, Weekes, Holling, Legrew, Earle,
sud other well-known English sealpiors. Forming the centre,
or nearly so, of the entire building, and dividing alike the
transept and the nave, rises the gigantic fountain of Messra.
Osler, the cuiminating point of view irom every quurter of
the building; whilst ot ihe northern end the eye is relieved
by the verdare of tropical plants end the lofty and overshadow-
ing branches of forest trees,

On the right, looking from Messra. Qaler's glass fountain up
the Enatern Division of the Nave, towards the American organ
and its enormous eagle, a combination of splendours bnrsts
upon the sight of overpowering magmificence. Hore, as
in tho Transept, the objests whivh first attraet the eye are the
senlptures, which are ranged on every side; some of them of
colossal size and of wurivulled beauty, by Kiss, Bimonis,
Monti, Du Seigreur, Duchesne, Muller, Schwanthaler,
Powers, nud others. The Western Iiivision of the Nave,
devoted to the produets of Fngland and her Colonies, if less
shawy, ona superfieial view, tliai its rival, hos moch of gterling
merit to recommend it. Here, too, are interapersed statues,
fountains, mirrors, organs, and other large ornamenta) objects,

Crosuing the Transcpt, and pursuing onr course to the left,
we enter the western division of the nave. We havs here the
Indian Court, Afiica, Canada, the West Indies, the Cape of
Good Hope, the Medizval Court, and the English Sculpture
Court, including worke of Gibson, Baily, Mae Dowell, ‘oloy,
Carew, Marshall, Behnes, Hopan, Bell, Janes, Stephens,
Thornyeroft, Watson, ete, ~To these succeed Birminghtm, tha
great Hritish Furniture Court, Sheffield, nnd ita hardware,
the woolien and mixed fabrics, showls, flax, and linens,
and printing snd dyeing. The long avenue leading from
the Medimval Court to the end of the building is dovoted
ko general hardware, brass and iron-work of all kinds,
locks, grates, ete.; whilst behind it, ond parallel with it,
bul oceupying three times its breadth, is the depurt-
ment for agrienltural maehines and implements. At the back
of this division is the long narrow gallery aceupied by the
mineral produets of England, Passing the small compartment
of glaes which runs transversely under the grent organ gallery,
seross the nave, we hove the cotton fabrie and carriage courts,
lenther, furs, and hair, minerals and mineral manufeetuves,
and machinery: ineluding cotton snd woollen power-looms
iz motion. The next is the lorgest compartment in the

building, comprising machinery in motion, flax, silk, and lace,
rope-making Lttims, tools, und mills; minerals and mineral
mannfactures, furniture, marine engines, ceilings, hydraulic
presaes, steam hammers, fire engines, ete, Then follow paper
and stutionery; Jersey, Ceylon, and Malta, with the Fine
Arts Court behind them; rsilway and steam machine

in motion; building contrivances, printing, and Frenc

machinery, cecupying the whole of the lust compartments
on both sides the nave, as well as those which faca the
transept. Crossing to the lefs of the Crystal Fountoin, we
have Persis, Greece, Egypt, and Torkey, Spain, Poriugal,
Mudeira and Italy, musieal instruments, and chemicals;
France, its tapestry, machinery, arme, and instruments, oceu-
pying two large courts ; Belgium, her furniture, carpets, and
machinery ; Austriz, with her gorgeous furniture courts, and
machinery furniture; the Zollverein, with its octagon room, the
most tastefully-arranged compartment in the building ; North
of Germany and Hanse Towns; Russia, with its malachite
doors, vages, and ornaments; and the United States, with
its agricultural implements, raw materials, etc., ocenpying all
that part of the nave which terminates with its organ, if we
except 4 small gallery on the north-east side, devoted o
Enplish paper-lianginga. From this extremity of the building,
and from the organ gallery more esrecinlly, the finest eoup
d'eil of the nave and its ftgiruining gelleries may ba obtained.

Croseing once more the nave on our refurn, we puss from
the United States to Sweden, part of Russin, Denmavk,
another division of the Zollverein, Russian cloths, hats, aud
earpets, Prussinn fabrics, Saxony, wnd the Austrion sculpturs
court; Austric runing back side by side with Belgium, the
whole way, Next succeeds ancther division of France, with
its splendid frontage of articlea of eiw and ormamentasl
furniture, ita magnificent eourt for plate, bronzes, and chinn;
its tastefu) furniture, sud carpets, its jewels, including thoss
of the Queen of Spain; its laces, gloves, and rich embroideries;
Switzerland, China, and Tunis, terminate this half of the nave.

Among the more strilting objects in the south-enatern gallery,
in the British balf of the nave, are the sitks ond shawls, abutting
on the transept; lace and embroideries, jewellery, and clocks
ond watches ; and behind them military arms and medels, raw
produce, substanees used as food, and chemicals. Traversing
the gollery for naval architecture, by the orpan, we have
Elﬁloaophical ingtrwments, civil engineering, architecture and

nilding models, musical instruments, anatomical modsls,
glase chandeliers, decorations, ete. ; china, entlery, and auimal
and vegetable manufactures, and china and pottery abuve the
left side of the northern part of the transept. On the oppo-
site side, in the nerth-eastern gallery, are perfumery, toys,
fishing materials, miscellaneous arbicles, wax flowers, stained
glnes, Britivh, French, Austrian, Belgion, Prussian, Bavarisn,
and American products.

Clear passnges under the golleries, of eight snd ten feet
brond, run the whole length of the building. Upon the
extreme north and south sides, there are also longitudinal
passages of similar width; the former interrupted by the
offices of the commissioners and the enirances, and the latter
by the refreshment rooms, With the exception of the offices,
staircases, entrances, refreshment courts, and the vavious
avenues and pnssoges, including tho transept, the whole of
the ground-floor end golleries are availsble for exhibitore.
As we have alrendy shown, foreign countries, including the
United Stotes of Ameries, oceupy the east side of the transept
above and below ; whilst the TUnited Kingdom, the Easi
Indies, and the British Coloniea are confined to the west side;
with the exeeption of the United Kingdom, which extends
into parts of the north snd south galleries, on the east side
of the trangept. The praductions of England and her Colonies
ocenpy thirty soparate sections. Of the four main departments
into which 1t is divided, machinery oceupies the north side,
mw materigls and produce the south side, and manufietures
and the fine arts the contre. Along the central pussage, to
the west of the transept, a frontage on each side, of seven
bays, or 168 fuet, in devoted to the production of the Colonies.

In retiring from the contemplation of this magnificent
edifice, the extraordinary expedition with which it was con-
strueted must be regarded as one of the marvels of the age.
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The tenders of the contractors were not, it is sinted, accepted
by the Royal Commissioners until the 26th of July, 1850 ; the
possession of the site wos onlyobtained on the 30th of the same
month, and the first ¢column woe not fixed nntil the 26th of
Seplember, lenving only seven menths for its completion,
Wﬁ]en we remember the elaborate celeuintions that were
necesxary before the iron and wood-work of the building could
be put in hnnd, the machines for economising labour that had |
to be devieed and manufactured, and the contracts for mate- |
rinls to be entered into, and the thunsands of hands that had
ta be sct to work, the celerity with which the building was
eompleted is one of the most remarkable fentures of its history,
In the sketch which we have here given of the history of
the Grent Exhibition, from its origin to the present time, we
hava confined curselves exclusively to faets; baving ecarefully |
avoided making it the vehicle of opinions of any kind. This
restriction, and the limited amount of space st eur disposl, |
have prevented us from entering upon muny topics which
might otherwise have diversified our narrative, aud relieved
the monatony inseparable from the compression, into o fow
puges, of the great body of facts we have been called upon to
cnumerate. Al questions invitiog discussion woul(F have
been out of place in o narrative like this, which aima simply
ok presenting o bricl, but faithful, history of one of the most
splendid and remarkable nndertakings that has ever been
attempted in this or any other country. Wehave left 3l con-
troversy on the plaus and axrangements of the Royal Com-
missioners, and the officials with whom they hove nesociated
themselves, to the Aré-Journal, without the aid of whose staff
it would have been impossible fur ua, or, indeed, for any one |
else, to have produced the present volume, at anything like the |
pricc at which it is now published. ‘With the composition of the |
juries, o the principle on which they arrive at their verdicts, |
and all the topies to which such an enquiry would of nceessity
coniduct us, we shall have nothing to do on the present occasion.
The Arf-Journol has displayed no want of cournge in denling
with such subjects, or in proteeting the interests of the great
body of British exhibitors from the effects of that averstrained
courtesy which secms to eonsider that the righta of hospitality
demand sacrifices on the part of their Eoglish competitors,
which are alilte inconsistent with resson or with justice. We
have, moreover, no official knowledge of the manner in which
the respective prizes have been awsrded, and possess, there-
fore, no correct data for speenlation on the subject; much will
depend not only on the impartinlity, but competency of the
various ,iumrs for the duty they have undertaken, and their
:qerfecl; freedom from national jenlonsy or bins ef any kind,
Vhether or not this grent enterprise will be productive of
the unmixed pood which has been anticipated from its present
guccess, its cffects on the peneral trade and commerce of
the couairy cannot have been ag injurious as some persons |
profess to think; but it may be questioned if* it have not |

benefited some clnases ab the expense of othera.
glut on the English market, of all kinds of orm
when the Exhibition bas closed, may be ator
merensed stimulus which their excellence may
the British manufacturer remains to be seen,
has Leen often asked, what iz to be done wit
Palace; but the praver inquiry would eeem to
be done with ike comtents? very large pro
will, in all probability, be sold for what they wil
40, with what effect upon the trade of the Britic
~—A pnrtial injury at most: whilst the benefite
the Exhibition are certain to prove both import:
nent. It will encournge us 1n tlhe prosecutior
in which we are in the ascendant, and show us
in those branches of industry in which we ma;
neighbours. To be aware of our deficiencies 15
townrds amending them; and there is no me
that which tenches us not to undervalue o
Industrial Exhibition will have had this good ef
The extent to which thin congress of the-
and industry hos alrendy promoted the objecte
and of peace, may be seen in the cordial feeln
Eugland and France are now inepired towan
and the noble spirit of emulation, deveid
rancorous prejudices, which it hos penernted
‘e need ncarcely refer more particularly to th
cordinl reception given by the great body of ar
of science of Franes to o lurge cssemblage of
men (most of them identified in some way or
Exhibition), at the Hotel de Ville of Paris, in ¢
Aupust; and the etrong and prateful impres
upon the ‘minds of all who had the opportunity.
in it. 8o noble n demonstration of mutun
cannot fail to form an erg in the histories of L
realiging, ns it did, so completely tho languape

| charming song, written when the prejudices

of the two nations were ot boiling heat:—

« F'oi vm In Paix descendre sur lu tovre,

B¢mant de Lo, des flours, ot des épie,

Lsir dait eglme, ot dv ddlen de 1n guerre,
Elle $tauilait les fondres assouple.

tAh!® dispit-elte, € dgaux par In vaillance,
Frangnis, Anglois, Belge, Ruise, ou Germa

Fauples formez nno eninta alliznce,
Ex donwez-vona In main !

el Nhyre enfin, que Lo monde reapive,

Bur lo passé jetez nn voile dpsis,

Sémez vor champa anx nceords de lo Jyre,
L'encens des arts doit briler pour la puix.

L.'espoir riant au scin do Vabendance,
Aceneillera les doux fruite do Ihymen.

Peuples formez nne somte allinnce,
Ei dontict-vons Ja main '
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TII!-] Works of Mr. ALDERYMAKN COPELAND, for the :

inanufacture of PoroELALY and EARTHENWARE
ars at Stoke-upon-Trent,—tho prinvipa! town of

the Saflordshire pottaries: his Londou catab-
taliment is in New Bond Street  The aviist
who presides over the works is Mr. Thomas

Battam, whose taste, judgment, and experienca
have bean lorgely esercised to aecura for this
manfaceiry the high reputation it enjoys, not
andy Iy Englaid, but throvghout Eurgpe, in
Asin, ond in Americs. The list of the Alder-
mon's productions eomprises all  classes of
# poods "~ from the statunry porcelain figure
aud the elsburately decorsted wose, to the

commonest article or enrthenware—manntac.
' tuved for exportativn by tens of thunsauds. The

=5 o,

compartment allatted to Mr, Copeland iu the
Exhibition eannot fail to be nnivereally attvae
tive,—uot alone because of the grace and besuty

of the articles shown, but as exhibibing o pro-
press in o olass of avt upon which mueh of gur
eommercinl prosyerity must depend. Fhe sollec
o will be carefully examined, and by foreigners
expecinly, whowill ind machtoadmire,and miels

that will by no mesns suffer in comparison with
the hest productions of Dresden and Sivres—
slways bearing in mind that at these Royal works.
cbjects nre occasionally produced ab natio

coat: sueh s those now to be found upon the
gtalls allotted to these Dwncus factories; and
that to expeoct private enterprive to entor
into eompetition with them would be neither
ressoaoble nor fair. At the anme fime it is only




